DECEMBER 22, 2025

# AFSE 2074 FUNDING FRAMEWORK

A UNIFIED FIDUCIARY ARCHITECTURE FOR IMPACT-DRIVEN CAPITAL
AND SOCIAL EQUITY

**CREATED BY** 

EUSL AB

Care to Change the World



# **Table of Contents**

Chapter 1: Executive Summary	2
Chapter 2: Preamble and Legal Basis	3
Chapter 3: Strategic Purpose and Scope	3
Chapter 4: Fiduciary Architecture	4
Chapter 5: Social Impact Integration	7
Chapter 6: Charity as a Business (CaaB) Concept	10
Chapter 7: Investor and DFI Alignment	12
Chapter 8: Governance and Compliance	15
Chapter 9: Funding Instruments	19
SWOT Analysis: AfSE 2074 Funding Framework	22
SWOT Table	23
PESTEL Analysis: AfSE 2074 Funding Framework	25
Consolidated PESTEL Table	26
Chapter 10: Implementation Protocol	27
Annex A: Social Global Goals (SGGs) Matrix	31
Annex B: Risk and Compliance Framework	35
Annex C: Charity as a Business (CaaB) Operational Model	43



# AfSE 2074 Funding Framework

# **Chapter 1: Executive Summary**

The Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (AfSE 2074) constitutes the supreme fiduciary and strategic instrument within the Creativa governance architecture, serving as the definitive framework for mobilizing, allocating, and safeguarding capital flows directed toward social equity objectives. Anchored in the Social Global Goals (SGGs) and harmonized with international development standards, AfSE 2074 establishes a legally enforceable structure for aligning public, private, and philanthropic resources under a unified compliance and governance regime.

AfSE 2074 is designed to reconcile social imperatives with economic rationality, thereby creating an investment environment where impact and profitability coexist without compromise. Through its integration of the Charity as a Business (CaaB) concept, AfSE 2074 transforms traditional philanthropy into a structured economic model, enabling investors and development finance institutions (DFIs) to participate in scalable social enterprises while maintaining fiduciary integrity and measurable returns.

The framework operates on three interdependent pillars:

Pillar	Description
Fiduciary Integrity	Enforces capital flow protocols, risk mitigation, and compliance with IFC and OECD standards.
·	Guarantees measurable outcomes aligned with SGGs through a unified MEL system and ESG safeguards.
Market Activation	Facilitates entry into emerging markets via Creativa's institutional network and PPP models.

AfSE 2074 introduces a blended finance architecture combining development bonds, impact funds, mezzanine finance, and revolving capital pools. These instruments are governed by transparent protocols and subject to independent oversight by GSIA and the Agenda 74 Agency, ensuring adherence to anti-corruption standards and ESG compliance.

By positioning social equity as an investable asset class, AfSE 2074 offers a compelling proposition for DFIs, sovereign entities, and private investors seeking to achieve risk-adjusted returns with demonstrable social impact. Its operational model integrates Charity as a Business, enabling corporate actors to convert CSR obligations into structured investments that generate both financial and societal dividends.

AfSE 2074 is not merely a funding mechanism; it is a normative mandate and operational standard, designed to institutionalize equity-driven development across continents. Through its governance architecture, fiduciary safeguards, and impact-driven instruments, AfSE 2074 establishes a new paradigm for financing social progress—one that is legally robust, economically viable, and ethically imperative.



# Chapter 2: Preamble and Legal Basis

The Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (AfSE 2074) is hereby constituted as a supreme normative and fiduciary instrument within the Creativa governance architecture. It derives its legal authority from the Creativa Mandate and is expressly aligned with internationally recognized frameworks, including the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), the African Union Agenda 2063, and the OECD Principles on Development Finance Integrity. AfSE 2074 is further anchored in the proprietary Social Global Goals (SGGs), which serve as the definitive benchmarks for equity-driven development under this framework.

This instrument is promulgated as a binding standard for all entities, projects, and programmes operating under the Creativa ecosystem, including but not limited to institutional programmes such as SDEP, DESA, PCGG, and PCPP. AfSE 2074 establishes enforceable fiduciary protocols, governance safeguards, and compliance obligations applicable to all capital flows mobilized under its authority. It is designed to ensure that financial resources, whether originating from development finance institutions (DFIs), sovereign entities, or private investors, are deployed in strict conformity with principles of transparency, accountability, and social equity.

AfSE 2074 shall be interpreted and applied as a supreme funding and operational framework, binding upon all signatory institutions and partners, and subject to independent oversight by the Global Social Impact Alliance (GSIA) and the Agenda 74 Agency. Its provisions shall prevail over any conflicting norms within subsidiary instruments, ensuring uniformity and legal certainty across all operational tiers.

# Chapter 3: Strategic Purpose and Scope

The strategic purpose of AfSE 2074 is to institutionalize a unified funding architecture that reconciles social imperatives with economic viability, thereby creating a sustainable investment environment for equity-driven development. AfSE 2074 is not merely a financial mechanism; it is a comprehensive governance and operational standard, designed to integrate social impact objectives into the core of capital allocation and project execution.

The scope of AfSE 2074 encompasses:

- Funding Mobilization and Allocation: Acting as the central fiduciary anchor for capital flows from DFIs, sovereign entities, and private investors into Creativa-aligned programmes and projects.
- Social Impact Integration: Ensuring that all funded initiatives deliver measurable outcomes
  aligned with the Social Global Goals (SGGs), including education, health, gender equity, and
  employment generation.
- Charity as a Business (CaaB) Model: Embedding the CaaB principle into the funding architecture, thereby transforming philanthropic contributions into structured economic models that generate both financial and societal dividends.
- **Compliance and Governance**: Establishing enforceable standards for transparency, anticorruption, and ESG safeguards, subject to independent monitoring and evaluation.
- Market Activation: Facilitating access to emerging markets through Creativa's institutional network, leveraging Public-Private Partnership (PPP) models under the Flowhub governance protocol.



AfSE 2074 operates as a multi-tiered framework, applicable at global, regional, and national levels, and is designed to harmonize with existing development agendas while introducing proprietary instruments such as impact funds, development bonds, and mezzanine finance facilities. Its ultimate objective is to position social equity as an investable asset class, thereby attracting sustained capital inflows and institutional commitment from both public and private sectors.

# Chapter 4: Fiduciary Architecture

The fiduciary architecture of Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (AfSE 2074) establishes a legally enforceable system governing the mobilization, allocation, management, and stewardship of capital originating from development finance institutions (DFIs), sovereign entities, private investors, and membership-driven pools under the Charity as a Business (CaaB) model. The architecture integrates transparent capital flow protocols, layered risk mitigation, standardized instruments, and auditable impact-return models. It is designed to safeguard integrity, ensure compliance, and institutionalize social equity as an investable asset class.

### **4.1 Capital Flow Protocols**

Capital flows are governed by codified phases and controls, ensuring traceability from commitment through disbursement to recycling and reporting. The following table sets out the protocol:

Phase	Action	<b>Custodial Controls</b>	Documentation	<b>Decision Rights</b>
Commitment	private investors, and	•	Mandate letters, side letters, KYC/AML certificates	Investment Committee (AfSE), co-sign GSIA
Pre- Disbursement	Eligibility screening and ESG safeguards verification	conditional release	Due diligence reports; ESG & safeguards checklist; MEL baseline	Compliance Unit; veto right to GSIA
Disbursement	ursement Tranche release per milestones Escrow-to-project account routing;		Inotices: milestone	Programme Owner + AfSE Treasury
Utilization	Use of funds per approved budgets and SGG-linked workplans	project accounts;	statements;	Project Director; external procurement auditor
Monitoring	Continuous MEL; financial and impact audits	Independent MEL operator; quarterly impact attestations		AfSE MEL Council; GSIA oversight



Phase	Action	<b>Custodial Controls</b>	Documentation	<b>Decision Rights</b>
Recycling	returned capital	ledger; waterfall	certificates; investor	AfSE Treasury; investor advisory panel
Exit/Completion	Instrument maturity or project closure	compliance	tinal impact evaluation: lessons	AfSE Board; GSIA certification

### **4.2 Governance Bodies and Decision Rights**

AfSE 2074 governance is executed through distinct bodies with clear mandates to prevent conflicts of interest and ensure checks and balances.

Body	Mandate	Key Powers	Interfaces
AfSE Investment Committee	Approves instruments, allocations, and pipeline	Approve/reject term sheets; set risk limits; instrument mix	AfSE Treasury; GSIA
AfSE Treasury	Manages escrow, tranching, recycling, and reporting	Tranche releases; waterfall enforcement; currency hedging	Project finance teams; custodial banks
Compliance & Safeguards Unit	Enforces ESG, anti- corruption, and procurement standards	Veto disbursement; sanction projects; remediation plans	MEL Council; GSIA
MEL Council	Oversees monitoring, evaluation, learning, and SROI	Set indicators; approve baselines; ratify impact reports	Programme Owners; GSIA
GSIA Oversight	Independent validation and certification		All AfSE bodies; Agenda 74 Agency

### **4.3 Risk Mitigation Layers**

Risk mitigation is embedded across financial, operational, and impact dimensions, applying layered controls.

Risk Class	Mitigation Layer	Mechanisms	Triggers & Remedies
Credit & Counterparty	guarantee	First-loss tranches; mezzanine buffers; sovereign guarantees; DFI partial risk guarantees	



Risk Class	Mitigation Layer	Mechanisms	Triggers & Remedies
FX & Liquidity	Hedging and liquidity buffers	revenue; FX forwards/swaps;	FX volatility threshold → activate hedges; adjust disbursement cadence
Procurement & Integrity	Pre-qualified vendor rosters	ilbrocurement: conflict-of-	Red flags → forensic audit; vendor ban; legal recourse
ESG & Safeguards	Binding ESG screens and remediations	llmanagement nians (FSMPs).	Non-compliance → corrective action plan; suspension
Impact Delivery	MEL-linked tranching	thresholds; adaptive	Underperformance → revise workplan; technical assistance; conditional funding
Political & Regulatory	Legal structuring and host agreements	liciauses: arbitration venues:	Policy shifts → invoke stabilization clause; renegotiate

### **4.4 Funding Instruments and Waterfalls**

AfSE 2074 provides an instrument suite to accommodate diverse investor profiles while protecting social outcomes.

Instrument	Purpose	Investor Profile	Waterfall Position	Return Profile
Development Bonds	Finance large-scale social infrastructure	DFIs, Sovereigns, Institutional	Senior	Fixed coupon; impact-linked step-ups
Impact Funds	Portfolio of SGG- aligned ventures	Institutional, Corporates (CSR/CaaB), Family Offices	Senior/Mezzanine	Blended returns; carry contingent on impact
Mezzanine Finance	Bridge growth with downside protection	DFIs, Impact Funds	Mezzanine	Preferred return + warrants; impact covenants
Revolving Pools (CaaB)	Membership-funded pools for local projects	Corporates, SMEs,	Senior within ringfence	Revolving principal; low coupon; high SROI



Instrument	Purpose	Investor Profile	Waterfall Position	Return Profile
	Tied to programme cash flows	Private Investors, Banks	ISenior	Variable coupon tied to KPIs
		Philanthropy, Foundations, GSDA		Capital protection for seniors; no coupon

**Standard Waterfall Discipline:** Senior tranches are serviced first; impact-linked step-ups apply only upon verified MEL outcomes; mezzanine returns are contingent on meeting SGG KPIs; junior first-loss absorbs initial shortfalls to preserve senior integrity.

### 4.5 Social Return on Investment (SROI) and Financial Returns

AfSE 2074 mandates dual-return accounting—financial and social—within a unified reporting cadence.

Return Dimension	Metric	Frequency	Certification	Disclosure
llEinancial	IRR, DSCR, liquidity ratios, covenant compliance	Quarterly		Investor reports; regulator filings
IlSocial (SROI)	Outcome-based indices aligned to SGGs	,		Public impact dashboards
ESG	Standards adherence (E, S, G indicators)	Semi-annual	Unit	Safeguard compliance statements
_	Variance analysis; corrective actions	Ongoing	MEL Council	Lessons learned annexes

### 4.6 PPP and Flowhub Integration

Public-Private Partnership (PPP) arrangements under AfSE 2074 are executed through Flowhub protocols, codifying roles, responsibilities, and stepwise delivery. Flowhub standardizes contracting, disbursement, change orders, and dispute resolution across sovereign and sub-sovereign contexts. PPPs operate under host country agreements and project-specific concession or service contracts, incorporating stabilization clauses and arbitration provisions to secure long-term viability.

# Chapter 5: Social Impact Integration

AfSE 2074 is constituted as a social-first funding framework. Social impact is integrated at mandate level through the Social Global Goals (SGGs) and operationalized through binding MEL standards, ESG safeguards, and the Charity as a Business (CaaB) model that channels private initiative into structured social dividends.



### **5.1 SGG Mapping and Impact Pathways**

All programmes and projects must explicitly map activities and outputs to SGG-linked outcomes and long-term impact pathways. The following table illustrates a representative linkage (adapt to full canonical SGG list already approved):

sgg	Outcome Domain	Indicative Indicators	Primary Instruments	Verification
SGG1		rates: employment placement	Impact Funds; Revenue-Backed Notes	Administrative datasets; tracer studies
SGG2	Health & Wellbeing	Clinic coverage; vaccination rates; maternal health outcomes	Development Bonds; PPP Concessions	Health MIS; independent surveys
SGG3		Female labor participation; leadership ratios; pay equity	Mezzanine with gender covenants	Payroll audits; MEL attestations
SGG4		IMSMEs financed: jobs	Mezzanine; Revolving Pools (CaaB)	Business registries; tax filings
SGG5	II)ıgıtal Access & I	Broadband penetration; e- government uptime; service SLAs	PPP Fibre; DESA- linked bonds	NOC logs; uptime certifications
SGG6	IFOOD Security &	Yield improvements; post- harvest loss reduction; market access	Development Bonds; SFPSEI pools	Agronomic surveys; market analytics
SGG7	Climate & Resilience		Impact Funds; Green tranches	MRV protocols; ESMP audits

Note: The full, authoritative SGG canon will be referenced in Annex A and enforced by the MEL Council.

### **5.2 MEL Standards and Enforcement**

AfSE 2074 mandates MEL as a condition precedent to disbursement and as a continuing covenant. Baselines, targets, and verification plans are embedded in term sheets and PPP contracts.

MEL Element	Requirement	Responsibility	Enforcement
Raceline Studies	·		Disbursement contingent upon acceptance
Illudicator Set	SGG-aligned; SMART; disaggregated (gender, youth)	IIMEL Council I	Required in all agreements
III)ata Ollality	• •	•	Quarterly certification; audit rights



MEL Element	Requirement	Responsibility	Enforcement
1	Formal variance analysis and corrective action plans	Programme ()wner	Conditional tranching; remedial funding
Public Disclosure	· ·	•	Transparency covenant; sanction for breach

### **5.3 ESG Safeguards and Grievance Mechanisms**

ESG safeguards are integrated into project design and contracting. Environmental and Social Management Plans (ESMPs) are mandatory. Communities and stakeholders can access independent grievance channels.

	•	Evidence
Environmental	ESMP; climate risk screening; circular resource use	ESMP approvals; monitoring logs
ISocial	• • •	Social inclusion audits; HR compliance
Governance	, ,,	Procurement logs; whistleblower reports
Grievance	Independent intake; response SLAs; remediation	Case registry; resolution certificates

### 5.4 Charity as a Business (CaaB) Integration

CaaB embeds membership-driven capital pools and corporate CSR budgets into AfSE funding streams, ensuring that social dividends are contractual outcomes rather than discretionary acts.

CaaB Component	Mechanism	Output	Impact Dividend
	<u> </u>		Continuous social services; local jobs
		O,	Measurable SROI; reputational capital
	_	•	Increased uptake; social cohesion
Performance Recognition	Badging and equity of participation	Public scorecards	Behavioral change; sustained engagement



CaaB contributions are ring-fenced by locality and mandate, with impact dividends documented through the MEL system and publicly disclosed to maintain legitimacy and scale participation.

### 5.5 Impact-Linked Incentives

AfSE 2074 aligns incentives with verified social outcomes. Instruments may feature impact-linked coupons, step-up rates, or performance carry contingent upon achieving SGG targets. These features are codified in term sheets and validated by GSIA certifications to prevent impact washing.

# Chapter 6: Charity as a Business (CaaB) Concept

The Charity as a Business (CaaB) concept within Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (AfSE 2074) is constituted as a binding operational and fiduciary model that converts philanthropic intent and corporate social responsibility (CSR) commitments into structured, auditable, and economically rational instruments. CaaB thereby institutionalizes social dividends as contractual outcomes, rather than discretionary acts, and aligns community participation with investor-grade governance. It is designed to be fully interoperable with AfSE 2074's funding architecture, monitoring standards, and ESG safeguards, ensuring that all social flows are traceable, measurable, and compliant.

CaaB establishes a membership-driven social capital market under AfSE 2074. Members—comprising corporations, SMEs, foundations, and citizens—subscribe to instruments or contribute to ring-fenced revolving pools governed by localized decision rights and centralized compliance. This market operates under a unified set of term sheets, waterfall disciplines, and impact covenants, enabling both predictable capital formation and continuous delivery of social services in alignment with the Social Global Goals (SGGs).

### 6.1 Institutionalization of CaaB within AfSE 2074

CaaB is institutionalized through a tri-layer structure—local, regional, and global—where each layer has defined mandates and escrow arrangements to prevent leakage and ensure dedicated use. Decision rights are distributed to preserve subsidiarity while maintaining central fiduciary control.

Layer	Mandate	Capital Source	Escrow & Ringfence	Decision Rights	Compliance Interface
Local Market Area	execute	Membership pools; local CSR	project	Member voting; programme owner authorization	MEL Operator; Procurement Auditor
IIKEGIONAI	standardize	Regional bonds; DFI co- finance	escrow; instrument	AfSE Investment Committee (regional)	Compliance & Safeguards Unit
Global (AfSE)	Standard setting and cross- border optimization	Impact funds; mezzanine; first-loss		AfSE Board: GSIA	GSIA Oversight; Agenda 74 Agency



### **6.2 CaaB Financial Mechanics and Social Dividends**

CaaB transforms contributions into instrument subscriptions with codified social outcomes, performance-linked incentives, and transparent reporting. Dividends under CaaB are defined as Impact Dividends, representing verified social outputs and outcomes delivered per unit of capital.

Mechanism	Input	Instrument Form	Output	Impact Dividend	Verification
Recurring Membership	•	Revolving pool note	Continuous micro- project funding	Service-hours, beneficiaries	MEL dashboards; quarterly attestations
CSR Conversion	Budget line items	revenue-	Scalable social ventures	l(e.g., jobs. – l	Term sheet KPIs; GSIA certification
Matching & First-Loss	Foundation/philanthropy	protection	De-risk senior tranches	capital	Waterfall audit; covenant testing
Local Co-Pay	' '		Targeted social services	inclusion	Inclusion audits; grievance logs

### 6.3 Governance and Integrity Safeguards in CaaB

To preclude impact washing and ensure legitimacy, CaaB integrates strict governance safeguards, including conflict-of-interest declarations, vendor prequalification, and whistleblower protections. All CaaB portfolios are subject to the same MEL, ESG, and procurement standards as AfSE 2074 programme finance.

Safeguard	Control	Evidence of Compliance	Remedy on Breach
	·	Signed disclosures; audit trail	Sanctions; disbarment; remedial training
Vendor Integrity	Prequalification; open competition	Vendor registry; bid logs	Rebid; vendor ban; legal escalation
Transparency	·	•	Publication order; corrective plan
Whistleblower	•	Case registry; resolution certificates	Independent investigation; restitution



### 6.4 CaaB Incentives, Recognition, and Behavioral Economics

CaaB incorporates a formal recognition system—badging, scorecards, and public attestations—linked to verified impact delivery. These mechanisms operate as non-financial returns that amplify participation and sustain community engagement without undermining fiduciary rigor.

Recognition Instrument	Eligibility	Award Basis	Effect on Behavior	Governance
Social Equity Badge	Corporate/member compliance	Verified SGG outcomes	participation;	GSIA-issued; annually renewed
Impact Scorecard	All portfolios	Relative performance vs. peers	llimprovement:	MEL Council oversight
Community Laurels	Local actors	Consistent delivery across cycles	J,	Local Market Area Board
Equity of Participation	Citizens/members	Sustained contributions	•	AfSE rules; audit trail

# Chapter 7: Investor and DFI Alignment

AfSE 2074 is expressly engineered to align the incentives, risk appetites, and reporting obligations of development finance institutions (DFIs), sovereign entities, institutional investors, corporate actors, and philanthropic foundations. This alignment is achieved through standardized instruments, layered risk mitigation, impact-linked performance features, and legally enforceable governance protocols. The framework positions social equity as an investable asset class, delivering risk-adjusted returns with auditable social outcomes.

### 7.1 Alignment Pathways by Investor Class

Each investor class is provided with a tailored pathway that respects its mandate constraints and performance expectations while preserving AfSE 2074's social-first orientation.

Investor Class		Preferred Instruments	Risk Position		Reporting Cadence
DFIs	impact; policy	Development bonds; mezzanine with covenants	Senior/Mezzanine	coupons: policy	Quarterly + annual true-up
Sovereigns	delivery,	PPP concessions;	Seriioi	Service-level	Quarterly; parliamentary disclosure



Investor Class	Mandate Orientation	Preferred Instruments	Risk Position	Performance Features	Reporting Cadence
		revenue-backed notes		stabilization clauses	
Institutional Investors	returns;	Impact funds; green tranches; RBNs	Senior/Mezzanine	Step-up rates upon verified impact	Quarterly; audited annual
Corporates (CSR/CaaB)	Social license;	Impact fund shares; CaaB revolving notes	Senior within	SROI scorecards; public recognition	Quarterly; public dashboards
Foundations & Philanthropy	limpact: crowd-l	First-loss; guarantees	Junior	De-risking leverage ratios	Semi-annual; outcome narratives
MSMEs & Citizens	access	CaaB membership pools; vouchers	Senior within locality	Service access; inclusion indices	Monthly; local boards

### 7.2 Term Sheet Standards and Impact Covenants

AfSE 2074 term sheets embed impact covenants as legally enforceable obligations. Disbursements are conditioned on MEL baselines, and performance returns are contingent upon SGG-linked targets. Standard clauses include ESG compliance, procurement integrity, grievance mechanisms, and stabilization clauses for sovereign-level PPPs.

Clause Category	Core Clause	Purpose	Remedy on Breach
Illmnact Covenant		Prevent impact washing; codify outcomes	Coupon suspension; covenant cure; step-down
MEL Preconditions	Baseline acceptance; data quality protocols	Ensure measurement validity	Tranche halt; independent review
IIFS(1 Sateguards	'		Corrective action plan; suspension
	Competitive bidding; conflict controls	Preserve value and trust	Re-procurement; sanctions
	Non-discrimination; international venue	Protect PPP viability	Invoke clause; arbitrate



Clause Category	Core Clause	Purpose	Remedy on Breach
	Public dashboards; audit rights	Public accountability	Publication order; audit escalation

### 7.3 Risk-Adjusted Return Models and Waterfall Integration

AfSE 2074 harmonizes financial returns with impact dividends, allowing instruments to incorporate impact-linked step-ups, performance carry, and capital protection. Waterfalls prioritize senior servicing, honor mezzanine contingencies tied to outcomes, and allocate residuals to junior tranches, particularly first-loss capital, to maintain integrity.

Model	Inputs	Computation Basis	Investor Benefit	Impact Integrity
Impact-Linked Coupon	Verified SGG outcomes	Step-up upon KPI attainment	Yield enhancement	GSIA-certified MEL data
Performance Carry	Fund-level outperformance	, ,	,	MEL Council attestation
•	Junior first-loss buffers			Transparent waterfall audits
Revolving SROI	Continuous service delivery	ISROI per capital unit		Quarterly public disclosure

### 7.4 Compliance, Certification, and Market Signaling

AfSE 2074 incorporates independent certification and public signaling to assure market participants of integrity and performance. GSIA issues compliance certifications; the Agenda 74 Agency coordinates peer review and cross-portfolio learning; and AfSE Treasury publishes standardized reports and dashboards. These functions convert verified impact into market signals that strengthen investor confidence and drive crowd-in effects.

Function	Operator	Signal	Audience	Effect
Compliance Certification	IGSIA	Certificate of adherence	regulators:	Reduced perceived risk; legitimacy
Peer Review & Learning	$\Delta \sigma_{\rm e}$ nda $7/1$ $\Delta \sigma_{\rm e}$ ncv		Programme owners: DFIs	Quality improvement; replication
Public Disclosure	IATSE Treasury	Quarterly dashboards; annual impact reports		Transparency; reputational capital



Function	Operator	Signal	Audience	Effect
	Independent assessor (optional)	, ,		Index inclusion; allocation decisions

### 7.5 Onboarding and Eligibility Protocol for Investors and Programmes

Onboarding protocols ensure only qualified capital and credible pipelines enter the AfSE 2074 system. Eligibility screening includes KYC/AML verification, mandate alignment checks, and readiness assessments for MEL and ESG compliance.

Stage	Investor Requirements	Programme Requirements	Gatekeeper	Outcome
Pre- Qualification	KYC/AML; mandate declaration; instrument selection	Concept note; SGG mapping; safeguards pre- screen	Compliance Unit	Eligibility determination
Due Diligence	Term sheet negotiation; covenant acceptance	Detailed feasibility; ESMP draft; MEL baseline plan	Investment Committee	Approved pipeline
Contracting	Execution of agreements; escrow setup	PPP/Grant/Concession contract; procurement plan	AfSE Treasury	Disbursement readiness
Launch	Initial tranche upon conditions	Baseline completion; procurement activation	MEL Council; Procurement Auditor	Project start
Operations	Reporting; compliance attestations	Quarterly MEL & financials	GSIA oversight	Continuous performance
Completion/Exit	Final audit; performance settlement	Impact true-up; lessons learned	AfSE Board	Closure; recycling

# Chapter 8: Governance and Compliance

The governance and compliance architecture of Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (AfSE 2074) is constituted to ensure legal certainty, fiduciary integrity, operational transparency, and enforceable social outcomes. It delineates decision rights, segregates duties, embeds safeguards, and codifies accountability at every tier—global, regional, and local—while maintaining uniform standards across



all instruments and programmes. This chapter sets forth the binding protocols, oversight mechanisms, audit cycles, and remedial pathways that collectively uphold the legitimacy and performance of the AfSE 2074 funding framework.

### **8.1 Institutional Governance Structure**

AfSE 2074 governance is expressed through defined bodies with non-overlapping mandates, preventing conflicts of interest and enabling checks and balances across fiduciary, operational, and impact domains.

Body	Constitutional Mandate	Core Powers	Decision Rights	Interfaces
AfSE Board	Supreme policy and fiduciary authority	Ratify policies; appoint committees; certify closures	Final ratification; emergency powers	GSIA; Agenda 74 Agency; AfSE Treasury
AfSE Investment Committee	Capital allocation and instrument selection	Approve term sheets; set risk limits; pipeline curation	et risk limits; Approve/reject investments	
AfSE Treasury	Custodial management and waterfall enforcement	Tranche releases; escrow control; recycling protocols	crow control;	
Compliance & Safeguards Unit	Enforcement of ESG, integrity, and procurement	Veto disbursement; sanction projects; remediation plans	Veto and sanction authority	MEL Council; Procurement Auditor
MEL Council	evaluation, learning,	Indicator setting; baseline ratification; impact certification	Tranche gating via impact milestones	Programme Owners; GSIA
GSIA Oversight	Independent validation and certification	Compliance certification; oversight veto; peer review	Certification powers; veto on material breaches	All AfSE bodies; Agenda 74 Agency
Local Market Area Boards	·	Portfolio selection; local oversight; grievance intake	Vote-based prioritization	AfSE regional units; MEL operators

### 8.2 Compliance Standards and Safeguards

All AfSE 2074 engagements shall comply with legally binding standards applicable to financial integrity, ESG safeguards, procurement, anti-corruption, data protection, and public disclosure.



Compliance is a condition precedent to disbursement and a continuing covenant throughout the life cycle of each instrument and project.

Standard Domain	Binding Requirements	Evidence of Compliance	Enforcement Mechanism
Financial Integrity	KYC/AML; escrow segregation; covenant testing	listatements: covenant	Tranche halt; audit escalation; sanctions
ESG Safeguards	ESMP adoption; labor standards; GBV mitigation; inclusion	Approved ESMP; social audits; grievance records	Corrective action plans; suspension
Procurement Integrity	Competitive bidding; conflict declarations; e-procurement	Bid logs; vendor registry; audit trail	Rebid orders; vendor bans; legal recourse
Anti-Corruption	Whistleblower protections; forensic audit readiness		Sanctions; restitution; referral
Data Governance	Data quality protocols; privacy and security controls	DQAs; access logs; consent records	Access restriction; remediation
Public Disclosure	Quarterly dashboards; annual impact reports	Published datasets; report links	Publication orders; reputational sanctions

### 8.3 Audit, Assurance, and Certification Cycle

AfSE 2074 mandates a disciplined cadence of internal controls, external audits, and independent certifications to assure investors, regulators, communities, and partners of ongoing compliance and performance.

Cycle Element	Frequency	Operator	Scope	Output
Internal Controls Review	Monthly	AfSE Treasury; Compliance Unit	Financial controls; segregation; waterfall	Control attestation
Financial Audit	•	Independent auditor	instrument	Audit report; management letter
	Quarterly; annual true-up	MEL Council; GSIA		Impact verification report
ESG & Safeguards Audit	ISemi-annual	•	IIESMP performance:	Safeguards compliance statement



Cycle Element	Frequency	Operator	Scope	Output
Peer Review & Learning	Annual	IΔgenda /Δ Δgency I	•	Lessons learned compendium
Certification Renewal	Annual	IGSIA	Whole-of-framework compliance	Certification of adherence

### 8.4 Grievance, Remediation, and Sanctions

AfSE 2074 ensures access to independent grievance channels for communities, workers, vendors, and investors. Remedial pathways are codified with strict service-level agreements and proportional sanctions to preserve integrity and trust.

Process	Intake and Triage	Investigation	Remedy	Sanction Spectrum
Grievance Handling	•	inquiry; external	restitution; corrective actions	Warnings → Suspension → Disbarment → Legal referral
	Detection via audits/MEL	Root-cause analysis	procurement;	Coupon suspension; tranche halt; termination
Disclosure Non- Compliance	Failure to publish mandated reports	Publication order;	publication;	Reputational sanction; certification impact

### 8.5 Legal Hierarchy and Conflict Resolution

AfSE 2074 establishes a clear legal hierarchy to prevent ambiguity in application across instruments, programmes, and jurisdictions, and provides structured dispute resolution pathways.

Hierarchy Level	Instrument	Precedence Rule	Dispute Resolution Venue
lSupreme		,	International arbitration; agreed venue
Secondary	Term Sheets; PPP/Concession Contracts		Contractual arbitration; courts of competent jurisdiction
llerhary		Interpret in harmony with higher instruments	Administrative resolution; mediation



Hierarchy Level	Instrument	Precedence Rule	Dispute Resolution Venue
Local	Market Area Bylaws (CaaB)	Subject to AfSE standards and safeguards	Local mediation; escalation to GSIA

# Chapter 9: Funding Instruments

AfSE 2074 establishes a standardized suite of funding instruments designed to accommodate diverse investor mandates while preserving social-first outcomes through impact covenants, waterfall discipline, and rigorous compliance. The instrument catalogue is interoperable across geographies and sectors, allowing programme owners to assemble balanced capital stacks tailored to their pipelines.

### 9.1 Instrument Catalogue and Core Features

Instrument	Purpose	Investor Profile	Tenor & Pricing	Security & Covenants	Return Features
	ll(health	DFIs; Sovereigns; Institutions	Medium– long tenor; fixed/step- up	Escrow; project liens; policy covenants	Fixed coupon; impact-linked step-up upon verified KPIs
Impact Funds (Closed-End)	exposure to SGG-	Institutions; Corporates; Family Offices	7–10 years; blended carry	ESG covenants; impact hurdles	Performance carry contingent on impact score
Mezzanine Facilities	Growth capital bridging senior debt and equity	DFIs; Impact Funds	Medium tenor; preferred return	Warrants/options; KPI covenants	Preferred return + upside; impact performance adjustments
	Tie returns to programme cash flows	Banks; Institutions; Corporates	Medium tenor; variable coupon	Cash flow assignment; DSCR covenants	Variable coupon indexed to service KPIs
Revolving Pools (CaaB Notes)	Local membership- funded pools for micro-projects	Corporates; SMEs; Citizens	Short– medium tenor; low coupon	Ringfenced locality; governance rights	Continuous SROI; reputational dividends



Instrument	Purpose			•	Return Features
Capital &	tranches; crowd-	Philanthropy;	Isenior	Subordination;	No coupon/low return; leverage protection

### 9.2 Standard Waterfall Discipline

Waterfalls codify the priority of payments and the conditionality of impact-linked returns, ensuring senior integrity while rewarding verified social outcomes.

Priority Tier	Servicing Order	Conditionality	Notes
Senior (Bonds, RBNs)	Interest → Principal → Fees	Step-up contingent on MEL-verified KPIs	Protected by first-loss; DSCR minimums apply
Mezzanine	Preferred return → Principal → Warrants exercise		Performance adjustments on under-delivery
	Residuals; contingent recoveries	Absorbs initial shortfalls	Catalytic capital to crowd- in seniors
CaaB Revolving	Continuous recycling per local rules	Public SROI disclosure	Local ringfence; governance votes

### 9.3 Impact Covenants, Triggers, and Remedies

All instruments shall embed impact covenants that are legally enforceable and directly tied to SGG outcomes. Remedies are proportionate and designed to correct performance while preserving social delivery.

Covenant	Trigger	Remedy	Oversight
SGG KPI Thresholds	Missed quarterly targets beyond variance allowance	beyond variance action plan; technical	
MEL Preconditions	Baseline not accepted; data quality failures	•	Compliance Unit; Treasury
ESG Compliance	ESMP breach; grievance unresolved	•	Compliance Unit; external specialist
Procurement Integrity	Non-compliant bidding or conflicts		Procurement Auditor; Compliance Unit



Covenant	Trigger	Remedy	Oversight
	_	Publication order; reputational sanction	AfSE Treasury; GSIA

### 9.4 Term Sheet Parameters and Documentation Standards

AfSE 2074 prescribes uniform term sheet parameters to ensure comparability, reduce transaction costs, and embed safeguards. Documentation standards enable traceable capital and auditable impact.

Parameter Class	Required Elements	Documentation
Economic Terms	Tenor; coupon/return; amortization; pricing basis	Term sheet; subscription agreements
Security & Controls	Escrow details; liens/assignments; authorization matrix	Security agreements; custodial letters
Impact & MEL	SGG mapping; KPI schedule; verification plan; baselines	MEL annex; certification schedules
ESG & Safeguards	ESMP adoption; labor standards; grievance process	ESG annex; policy adoption letters
Procurement & Integrity	Bidding protocol; conflict declarations; audit rights	Procurement plan; integrity covenants
Waterfall & Recycling	Priority of payments; recycling rules; redemption rights	Waterfall schedule; recycling policy
Disclosure & Reporting	Quarterly/annual cadence; public dashboards; audit	Reporting calendar; audit engagement letters
Dispute Resolution	Stabilization clauses; arbitration venue; governing law	Dispute resolution clause; legal opinions

### 9.5 Illustrative Capital Stack Assembly

Programme owners shall construct balanced capital stacks that combine senior protection, performance incentives, and social-first delivery. The following illustration demonstrates assembly logic.

Layer	Component	Role in Stack	Risk/Return Profile
Senior Debt	•		Lower risk; impact step- ups



Layer	Component	Role in Stack	Risk/Return Profile
Mezzanine	Mezzanine Facilities	Growth bridge; performance alignment	Moderate risk; preferred returns
Junior	First-Loss / Guarantees		High risk; protection function
Local Social Capital	CaaB Revolving Pools	Community projects; continuous SROI	Low coupon; reputational returns
Equity/Upside	Warrants/Options (Mezzanine)		Upside contingent on KPIs

### 9.6 Pricing, Indexation, and Hedging Protocols

AfSE 2074 allows indexation and hedging to protect investor value and programme viability without diluting social obligations.

Feature	Application	Control	Disclosure
Impact-Linked Step-Ups	•		Instrument reports; dashboards
FX Hedging	lit ross-horder cash flows		Hedging policy statements
Inflation Indexation	llLong-tenor concessions	Contractual indexation clauses	Index basis; adjustment logs
Liquidity Buffers	IIAII INSTRUMENTS		Buffer attestations; covenant tests

# SWOT Analysis: AfSE 2074 Funding Framework

The following analysis evaluates Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (AfSE 2074) as a funding framework for investors, DFIs, sovereigns, corporates, and philanthropic actors. It is structured in a formal legal-narrative style and complemented by a consolidated table for clarity. The analysis is anchored in the framework's fiduciary architecture, social impact integration, and the Charity as a Business (CaaB) model, as already constituted in Chapters 4–9.

### **Narrative Assessment**

AfSE 2074 exhibits structural strengths in governance clarity, enforceable fiduciary protocols, and impact-standardization through MEL and ESG safeguards. Its blended finance architecture and waterfall discipline provide investor-grade predictability while preserving social-first outcomes via impact covenants and performance-linked incentives. The integration of CaaB adds a scalable, membership-driven capital formation mechanism that enhances locality, legitimacy, and continuity of social delivery.



The principal weaknesses lie in adoption complexity, multi-layered compliance overhead, and cross-jurisdiction legal harmonization requirements. These can increase transaction costs and elongate time-to-capital for new pipelines unless mitigated by standardized documentation, pre-qualified vendor rosters, and pre-cleared sovereign agreements.

AfSE 2074's opportunities are defined by global demand for credible impact finance, DFI alignment with ESG and SDG mandates, and sovereign interest in PPP models that stabilize service delivery. The framework's ability to position social equity as an investable asset class creates pathways for index inclusion, ratings interfaces, and broader institutional allocation. CaaB's localized voting and ring-fenced recycling can catalyze crowd-in effects and bottom-up legitimacy.

The threats include policy volatility in host countries, FX and liquidity shocks in cross-border programmes, reputational risks (impact washing by third parties), and procurement integrity challenges. These are addressed through stabilization clauses, hedging protocols, grievance mechanisms, independent certifications (GSIA), and binding integrity covenants.

### **SWOT Table**

Category	Core Findings	Implications for AfSE 2074	Mitigation / Strategic Action	
Strengths	Supreme governance architecture with segregated decision rights (Board, Investment Committee, Treasury, Compliance, MEL Council, GSIA oversight).	High fiduciary integrity; investor confidence; enforceable social outcomes.	Maintain annual certification cycles; expand standardized term sheets and escrow templates; publish public dashboards for continuous signaling.	
	Blended finance instruments (development bonds, impact funds, mezzanine, RBNs, first-loss, CaaB pools) with disciplined waterfalls.	Flexible capital stacks for diverse mandates; predictable servicing; impact-linked performance.	Continue instrument catalog expansion; pre-structure capital stacks by sector (health, education, fibre, agriculture) for rapid onboarding.	
	Mandatory MEL and ESG safeguards with impact covenants and grievance mechanisms.	Prevents impact washing; codifies outcomes; strengthens legitimacy.	Strengthen MEL operator network; adopt sector-specific indicator libraries; enforce data quality audits.	
	CaaB integration (membership-driven pools, local voting, ringfenced recycling).	Sustained local funding; social license; decentralized legitimacy.	Formalize local bylaws; replicate best-practice portfolios; expand recognition instruments (badging, scorecards).	
Weaknesses	Multi-layer compliance and documentation burden.	Potentially slower onboarding and higher transaction costs.	Create a "Fast-Track" protocol: pre-qualified pipelines, pre-cleared ESG/MEL baselines,	



Category	Core Findings	Implications for AfSE 2074	Mitigation / Strategic Action
			model contracts by country/REC.
	Cross-jurisdiction legal Complexity in sove harmonization and arbitration venue selection.		Adopt modular host-country agreement templates; negotiate stabilization clauses upfront; maintain a legal opinions repository.
	Data governance and quality variability across regions.	Risk to SROI comparability and impact-linked returns.	Centralize data quality standards; deploy independent MEL verification partners; introduce corrective tranching norms.
Opportunities	•	Increased allocation potential; pipeline scale; index/rating inclusion.	Develop an AfSE 2074 Impact Index in partnership with rating agencies; codify impact- linked coupon methodologies.
	to deliver essential services	Large-scale bond issuance potential; revenue-backed notes tied to SLAs.	Build sector-specific PPP playbooks; negotiate multi-year concession frameworks with stabilization and arbitration clauses.
		Predictable corporate flows; reputational dividends; continuous SROI.	Convert CSR to instrument subscriptions; expand corporate recognition protocols; publish sectoral performance leaderboards.
	•	Trust-building and uptake; resilient social delivery.	Institutionalize grievance SLAs; periodic community consultations; transparent portfolio rotation rules.
Threats	Policy volatility and regulatory shifts in host jurisdictions.	Contract risk and programme disruption.	Invoke stabilization clauses; diversify jurisdictional exposure; maintain contingency reserves and stepwise disbursement.



Category	Core Findings	Implications for AfSE 2074	Mitigation / Strategic Action	
	FX and liquidity shocks impacting cross-border cash flows.		Apply hedging protocols (forwards/swaps); set minimum liquidity buffers; adopt natural hedges via local revenues.	
	Procurement integrity risks and third-party misconduct.	=	Enforce prequalification; e-procurement; forensic audits; vendor disbarment and legal recourse.	
	Impact washing and disclosure failures by partners.	Certification risk; market confidence loss.	GSIA certification; publication orders; coupon step-down on non-compliance; corrective action plans with public reporting.	

# PESTEL Analysis: AfSE 2074 Funding Framework

The following analysis examines the political, economic, social, technological, environmental, and legal dimensions relevant to the Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (AfSE 2074) as an institutional funding framework. It is crafted in a strict formal legal-narrative style, with a consolidated table to support clarity. The assessment integrates AfSE 2074's governance, fiduciary architecture, social-first mandate, and Charity as a Business (CaaB) model, and is intended to inform risk management, market signaling, and strategic positioning for DFIs, sovereigns, investors, and corporate actors.

### **Narrative Assessment**

**Political.** AfSE 2074 will encounter heterogeneous governance regimes, policy volatility, and shifting priorities across sovereign and sub-sovereign jurisdictions. The framework's reliance on host country agreements, stabilization clauses, and international arbitration venues responds to these conditions, preserving contractual certainty and protecting long-tenor PPPs, concessions, and development bonds. Independent oversight via GSIA and operational stewardship by the Agenda 74 Agency provide additional legitimacy and depoliticized performance assurance. Political risks remain material in early-stage pipelines; therefore, phased disbursements, dual authorizations, and covenant-based gates are imperative.

**Economic.** Cross-border capital mobilization under AfSE 2074 is exposed to FX volatility, inflation dynamics, liquidity constraints, and cyclical demand variations. The architecture embeds escrow segregation, DSCR covenants, liquidity buffers, and hedging protocols to maintain servicing integrity. Blended finance—combining senior bonds, mezzanine facilities, first-loss capital, and CaaB revolving pools—optimizes cost of capital and crowds in institutional allocations. Revenue-backed notes and impact-linked coupons align financial returns with verified social outcomes, enhancing investor confidence while preserving social-first obligations.



**Social.** AfSE 2074 is a social-first framework anchored in the Social Global Goals (SGGs), codifying measurable outcomes in education, health, gender equity, employment, and inclusion. The integration of CaaB localizes capital formation and decision rights, strengthening social license through community voting, grievance redress, and ring-fenced recycling. Mandatory MEL baselines, disaggregated indicators, and public disclosure convert social delivery into auditable impact dividends, mitigating reputational risk and preventing impact washing.

**Technological.** Technological readiness—particularly for DESA-aligned digital infrastructure, monitoring systems, and e-procurement—is a prerequisite for reliable measurement, transparency, and service-level enforcement. AfSE 2074's MEL standards require interoperable data systems, uptime certifications, and secure access protocols. In programmes with high digital intensity (fibre, e-government, health information systems), term sheets must embed service-level KPIs, cybersecurity provisions, and vendor integrity checks to preserve continuity and trust.

**Environmental.** Environmental stewardship is institutionalized through binding ESG safeguards and Environmental and Social Management Plans (ESMPs), including climate risk screening, circular resource use, and mitigation for environmental externalities. Green tranches within impact funds and development bonds can price verified emissions reductions or resilience outcomes. Grievance mechanisms, independent audits, and corrective action plans are mandatory to ensure environmental compliance and community protection throughout project lifecycles.

**Legal.** The framework's legal durability relies on a clear hierarchy: AfSE 2074 Charter and Policy Directives (supreme), followed by term sheets and PPP contracts (secondary), operating manuals and protocols (tertiary), and local bylaws (subject to AfSE standards). Stabilization clauses, international arbitration venues, and enforceable impact covenants protect investor rights and social outcomes. Procurement integrity, anti-corruption controls, data governance, and transparency obligations are continuing covenants, with sanctions ranging from coupon step-downs to termination and referral.

### Consolidated PESTEL Table

Dimension	Key Conditions	Implications for AfSE 2074	Policy Response / Controls	Residual Risk
Political	Policy volatility; electoral cycles; multi-tier governance	Contract uncertainty for PPPs and concessions	Host country agreements; stabilization clauses; phased tranches; GSIA oversight	Medium—mitigated by legal structuring and dual authorizations
Economic	FX swings; inflation; liquidity constraints; cyclical revenues	bonds/RBNs; pricing and tenor	Escrow segregation; DSCR covenants; hedging; liquidity buffers; blended finance	Medium—mitigated by hedging and waterfall discipline
Social	Inclusion imperatives; legitimacy;	Need for auditable outcomes; risk of impact washing	SGG mapping; MEL baselines; public dashboards; grievance SLAs; CaaB local voting	



Dimension	Key Conditions	Implications for AfSE 2074	Policy Response / Controls	Residual Risk
	reputational sensitivity			
Technological	Digital infrastructure quality; data integrity; cybersecurity	Measurement reliability; procurement integrity; uptime risks	E-procurement; NOC logs; SLA KPIs; data quality audits; security protocols	Medium—mitigated by contractual SLAs and operator prequalification
Environmental	Climate exposure; resource constraints; externalities	ESG compliance obligations; potential project delays	ESMPs; green tranches; independent audits; corrective action plans	Medium—context- dependent; mitigated by safeguards
Legal	Jurisdictional variance; arbitration enforceability	Enforcement and dispute resolution complexity	Clear hierarchy; arbitration venues; integrity covenants; disclosure mandates	Low-Medium— mitigated by strong contracting and certification

# Chapter 10: Implementation Protocol

The Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (AfSE 2074) Implementation Protocol codifies the end-to-end governance, financing, and delivery cycle for programmes and projects under the framework. It establishes formal procedures and decision rights from initial expression of interest through closure and recycling, ensuring legal certainty, fiduciary integrity, and enforceable social outcomes aligned with the Social Global Goals (SGGs) and the Charity as a Business (CaaB) model.

### 10.1 Purpose and Applicability

This Protocol applies to all instruments, projects, and programmes financed or co-financed under AfSE 2074, including sovereign-level PPPs, concession agreements, development bonds, impact funds, mezzanine facilities, revenue-backed notes, first-loss capital, and CaaB revolving pools. It is binding upon programme owners, investors, sovereign entities, contractors, and MEL operators, and shall be read in harmony with Chapters 4 through 9 of this document.

### 10.2 Onboarding and Readiness Sequence

AfSE 2074 employs a sequenced, gate-based onboarding cycle to guarantee fiduciary control and impact integrity. Each gate requires documentary compliance before advancement.

Gate	Objective	Required Submissions	Gatekeeper	Decision Rights	Outcome
EOI Registration		Expression of Interest; mandate statement;	AfSE Investment	Intake acceptance	EOI docket opened;



Gate Objective		Required Submissions	Gatekeeper	Decision Rights	Outcome
		preliminary SGG mapping	Committee Secretariat		scheduling of screening
Eligibility Screening	Verify basic compliance	KYC/AML certificates; organizational registration; ethics policy; initial risk self- assessment	Compliance & Safeguards Unit	Pass/withhold	Eligibility status issued
Concept Validation	Confirm strategic fit and feasibility	Concept note; preliminary budget; sector justification; draft MEL outline; ESG pre-screen	Investment Committee + MEL Council	Committee + Approve/return	
Due Diligence	Establish bankability and impact credibility	Detailed feasibility; ESMP draft; full MEL baseline plan; procurement plan; legal structuring memo	Investment Committee (lead) + Treasury + Compliance	Approve/reject	Pipeline approval; term sheet negotiation mandate
Term Sheet & Contracting	Codify economics and covenants	Executed term sheet; PPP/concession/loan agreements; escrow instructions; authorization matrix	AfSE Treasury	Execute or renegotiate	Disbursement readiness; conditions precedent set
Conditions Precedent (CP)	Confirm operational readiness	MEL baseline acceptance; ESMP approval; vendor prequalification; grievance setup; public disclosure plan	MEL Council + Compliance Unit	CP clearance	Initial tranche authorization
Launch	Initiate financial and operational delivery	Disbursement notice; milestone certificate; procurement activation	AfSE Treasury	Tranche release	Programme start
Operations & Monitoring	Maintain performance and compliance	Quarterly financials; MEL reports; ESG compliance statements; public dashboards	MEL Council + Compliance + GSIA	Continue/adjust	Ongoing operation; corrective action if needed



Gate	Objective	Required Submissions	Gatekeeper	Decision Rights	Outcome
Variance & Remediation	Address deviations	corrective plan; technical assistance	MEL Council + Compliance Unit	Approve/mandate	Adjust workplan; conditional tranching
Completion & True-Up	programme and settle	·	AfSE Board + GSIA	Certify/close	Closure; capital recycling to new pipelines

### **10.3** Role Definitions and Interfaces

Decision rights and responsibilities are segregated to preserve checks and balances, prevent conflicts of interest, and maintain performance integrity.

Actor	Mandate	Primary Duties	Interfaces
Programme Owner	Deliver outcomes per SGG and term sheet	Execute workplans; manage vendors; submit reports	MEL Council; Treasury; Compliance Unit
AfSE Investment Committee	Approve pipeline and instrument mix	Screen, approve, or return concepts; set risk limits	Treasury; GSIA; Programme Owners
AfSE Treasury	Manage capital custody and waterfalls	Escrow control; tranching; recycling; FX and liquidity	Custodian banks; Compliance; Investment Committee
Compliance & Safeguards Unit	Enforce ESG and integrity	Vet eligibility; approve ESMPs; sanction breaches; oversee procurement	MEL Council; Treasury; Procurement Auditor
MEL Council	Certify impact baselines and outcomes	Approve baselines; set indicators; certify SROI; variance management	Programme Owners; GSIA
GSIA Oversight	Certify compliance and outcomes	Issue certifications; exercise oversight veto; peer review	All AfSE bodies; Agenda 74 Agency
Local Market Area Board (CaaB)	Community prioritization and grievance intake	Vote on local portfolios; monitor delivery; escalate grievances	Programme Owners; MEL operators



### **10.4 Conditions Precedent and Continuing Covenants**

Conditions Precedent (CP) must be satisfied prior to first disbursement; Continuing Covenants apply throughout the instrument and project lifecycle.

Category	Condition Precedent	Continuing Covenant	Remedy on Breach
MEL	lapproved: indicator plan	, , , , , ,	Tranche halt; corrective plan; independent review
ESG	,, ,		Immediate corrective action; suspension
Financial			Coupon suspension; restructuring
IProcurement		· -	Re-procurement; vendor bans
Disclosure	Public dashboard plan filed	•	Publication order; reputational sanction

### 10.5 Sector Playbooks and KPI Libraries

AfSE 2074 maintains sector-specific playbooks and KPI libraries to standardize programme design and accelerate bankability.

Sector	Representative KPIs	Typical Instruments	Special Provisions
Education & TVET	Enrollment, completion, placement; gender parity indices	limpact funds: RBNs - I	Tranche gates tied to placement rates; youth inclusion disaggregation
Health Systems	Clinic coverage; vaccination; maternal outcomes; uptime SLAs	•	Service-level KPIs in contracts; supply chain integrity audits
Digital Governance & Fibre	Broadband penetration; e-gov uptime; SLA compliance		NOC logs; cybersecurity clauses; service credits
Staple Food Systems	Yield gains; post-harvest loss reduction; market access	mezzanine; CaaB	Climate resilience indices; cooperative participation metrics
Water & Sanitation	Access rates; leakage; water efficiency; tariff affordability		Social tariff covenants; circular resource use



### 10.6 Dispute Resolution and Stabilization

Cross-border and sovereign-level engagements require enforceable dispute and stabilization protections.

Clause Type	Purpose	Standard Form	Venue / Law
Stabilization	Protect against adverse policy/regulatory shifts	G, ,	Host law with international arbitration fallback
Arbitration	·	Institutional rules (e.g.,	Neutral venue; governing law specified in contract
Stepwise Cure	Enable remediation before termination	·	Contractual; supervised by Compliance Unit
Transparency Orders	·	Publication order; audit escalation	AfSE Treasury authority; certification impact

### 10.7 Capital Recycling and Exit Protocol

Upon completion, capital is recycled according to waterfall rules and reallocated to pre-qualified pipelines to maintain continuity of social delivery.

Stage	Action	Evidence	Authority
	Ğ	Audit report; investor statements	AfSE Treasury
<b>'</b>		MEL Council certification; GSIA endorsement	MEL Council; GSIA
, ,	Reallocate returned capital to next pipeline	, ,	Treasury; Investment Committee
_		Peer review report; playbook update	Agenda 74 Agency

# Annex A: Social Global Goals (SGGs) Matrix

This Annex constitutes the **authoritative operational matrix** for the Social Global Goals (SGGs) under AfSE 2074. It provides standardized outcome domains, mandatory indicators, verification methods, and instrument alignment to ensure comparability of impact and enforceability of outcome-linked finance. Indicators shall be disaggregated by gender, age, geography, and socio-economic status where applicable. Programme Owners must attach the relevant SGG rows to their term sheets and MEL annexes.



**Note:** The following matrix illustrates representative entries aligned with the canonical list you approved. It is designed for immediate use within AfSE 2074 contracting and MEL certification.

sgg	Outcome Domain	Core Outcome Statement	Mandatory Indicators (Examples)	Verification & Data Sources	Instrument Alignment	Disclosure Requirement s
SGG1	Education & Skills Access	Equitable access to quality education and TVET pathways	Enrollment and completion rates; job placement within 6–12 months; gender parity index	Administrativ e records; tracer studies; independent surveys	Developmen t Bonds; Impact Funds; RBNs	Quarterly dashboards; annual impact report; disaggregatio n by gender/youth
SGG2	Health & Wellbeing	Universal access to primary health services and preventive care	Clinic coverage; vaccination rates; maternal mortality ratio; uptime SLAs for health facilities	Health MIS; independent audits; facility uptime logs	Developmen t Bonds; PPP Concessions	statements;
SGG3	Gender Equity & Inclusion	and protection across social and economic	Female labor participation; leadership representation; pay equity indices; GBV incidence reduction	Payroll audits; social inclusion audits; grievance registry	Mezzanine with gender covenants; Impact Funds	Quarterly inclusion dashboard; annual parity review
SGG4	Decent Work & MSME Growth	Formalized employment and MSME expansion with fair standards	MSMEs financed; jobs created; formalization rates; living wage compliance	Business registries; tax filings; labor inspections	Mezzanine; Revolving Pools (CaaB)	Quarterly employment and MSME dashboards



sgg	Outcome Domain	Core Outcome Statement	Mandatory Indicators (Examples)	Verification & Data Sources	Instrument Alignment	Disclosure Requirement s
SGG5	Digital Access & Governance	Inclusive digital infrastructure and reliable e-government services	Broadband penetration; e-gov uptime; service request resolution times	NOC logs; SLA certifications; user surveys	PPP fibre concessions; DESA-linked bonds	Monthly uptime disclosures; quarterly SLA attestation
SGG6	Food Security & Staple Systems	Stable, resilient staple food ecosystems and market access	Yield improvements ; post-harvest loss reduction; market price stability	market	Developmen t Bonds; SFPSEI pools	dashboards;
SGG7	Climate & Resilience	Emissions reduction and community resilience to climate risks	tCO₂e reduced; water efficiency; resilience score improvements		Impact Funds (green tranches); Bonds	Annual MRV report; climate risk disclosures
SGG8	Water & Sanitation	Safe, affordable water and sanitation services	Access rates; leakage reduction; tariff affordability index	Utility MIS; independent audits; community surveys	Developmen t Bonds; PPPs; RBNs	Quarterly service and tariff disclosure
SGG9	Housing & Urban Equity	Affordable, inclusive, climate-positiv e housing	Units delivered; affordability index; energy efficiency ratings	building	Impact Funds; RBNs; PPPs	Semi-annual housing impact statements
SGG1 0	Governance & Public Integrity	Transparent, accountable institutions and procurement integrity	Open procurement rate; audit closure times; corruption	•	instruments with	Quarterly integrity reports; publication orders



sgg	Outcome Domain	Core Outcome Statement	Mandatory Indicators (Examples)	Verification & Data Sources	Instrument Alignment	Disclosure Requirement s
			grievance resolution			
SGG1 1	Youth & Intergeneration al Equity	Youth access to education, work, and civic participation	Youth employment rates; apprenticeship slots; civic engagement metrics	Youth surveys; programme records; MEL verification	Impact Funds; CaaB pools	Youth equity dashboard; annual participation report
SGG1 2	Social Protection & Safety Nets	Reliable social services and targeted support	Beneficiaries reached; service continuity metrics; targeting accuracy	lindependent	Bonds; RBNs; CaaB notes	Quarterly service continuity disclosures
SGG1	Agriculture & Rural Livelihoods	Productive, fair rural economies and value chains	cooperative participation;	Household surveys; cooperative ledgers; transport KPIs	Mezzanine; Developmen t Bonds; PPP logistics	
SGG1 4	Innovation & Knowledge	Research, innovation, and knowledge transfer for equity	outputs; tech adoption; training	Academic records; patent filings; MEL training logs	Impact Funds; DESA-linked instruments	Annual innovation and knowledge report
SGG1 5	Equity in Access to Justice	Fair access to legal services and dispute resolution	_	Court records;	Impact Funds (justice); PPP service contracts	Semi-annual justice access disclosures
SGG1 6	Cooperative & Community Institutions	Strengthened cooperative and	Cooperative membership and retention; voting	Cooperative registries; bylaws audits;	PPP community	Annual cooperative performance scorecard



IISGG	Outcome Domain	Core Outcome Statement	Indicators	Verification & Data Sources	Instrument	Disclosure Requirement s
		community governance	·	MEL attestations		
SGG1	Partnerships &	Inartnershins	ratios; partner diversity; alignment with AfSF	MOUs; financing ledgers: GSIA	instruments via blended finance	Annual partnership and funding equity disclosure

### **Annex A.1 Indicator Quality and Certification**

All indicators shall be **SMART**, disaggregated, and subjected to data quality assessments (accuracy, completeness, timeliness). Certification follows the cadence specified in Chapter 4 and Chapter 8, requiring **MEL Council** attestation and **GSIA** certification before impact-linked returns (coupons, carry, step-ups) are recognized.

### **Annex A.2 Instrument-to-SGG Mapping Protocol**

Programme Owners must include a mapping schedule in the term sheet annex linking each instrument tranche to SGG outcomes, KPIs, verification methods, and disclosure obligations. Tranche releases are contingent upon **baseline acceptance** and **milestone achievement**, and step-ups are activated only upon **verified KPI attainment**.

# Annex B: Risk and Compliance Framework

This Annex establishes the binding risk governance, control standards, compliance obligations, and assurance protocols for all instruments, programmes, and projects financed or co-financed under **Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (AfSE 2074)**. It integrates fiduciary, operational, integrity, ESG, data, and impact risks into a single, enforceable framework. All provisions herein are conditions precedent to disbursement and continuing covenants throughout the life cycle of financing and delivery.

### **B.1** Purpose, Scope, and Risk Governance

AfSE 2074 adopts an integrated risk management approach built on explicit risk appetite statements, segregation of duties, and independent assurance. The framework applies to sovereign PPPs, concessions, development bonds, impact funds, mezzanine facilities, revenue-backed notes, first-loss capital, and CaaB revolving pools.

Element	Definition	Binding Requirements	Primary Authority
Risk Appetite	deviations by instrument and	documented per portfolio;	AfSE Board; Investment Committee



		Binding Requirements	Primary Authority
Defense	Risk & Compliance; 3)		Programme Owners; Compliance Unit; External Auditor
	Periodic validation of controls	laffestations: annual GSIA	AfSE Treasury; GSIA; MEL Council

# **B.2** Risk Taxonomy and Control Objectives

The following taxonomy defines material risk classes and corresponding control objectives. Controls are compulsory and auditable.

Risk Class	Definition	Control Objective
Credit/Counterparty	Failure of obligors, sponsors, or vendors to perform	Preserve servicing integrity via security, covenants, and guarantees
Market/FX/Interest	Adverse currency or rate movements affecting cash flows	Hedge exposures; align revenues and liabilities; maintain buffers
Liquidity	Insufficient liquid resources to meet obligations	Enforce minimum reserves; DSCR covenants; staged disbursement
Operational	Failures in processes, people, systems, or external events	Standardize SOPs; dual controls; BCP/DR readiness
Procurement & Integrity	Value leakage or misconduct across the supply chain	E-procurement, prequalification, conflict controls, forensic readiness
ESG & Safeguards	Environmental and social harms; labor and community risks	ESMP adoption; grievance SLAs; audits; corrective action plans
Impact Delivery	Non-achievement of SGG outcomes and MEL targets	Impact covenants; tranching gates; adaptive management
Legal/Regulatory	Non-compliance with law or contractual obligations	Legal opinions; stabilization clauses; dispute readiness
Data & Cybersecurity	Data quality failures; breaches; service downtime	DQAs; access controls; encryption; uptime SLAs; incident response
Reputational	Loss of public trust from failures or opacity	Mandatory disclosure; GSIA certification; grievance transparency
Model Risk	Flawed assumptions in financial/impact models	Independent validation; stress testing; periodic recalibration



Risk Class	Definition	Control Objective
Country/Political		Host country agreements; political risk insurance; diversification

# **B.3 Core Policies and Mandatory Controls**

# **B.3.1 Financial Integrity and Custody**

Control	Requirement	Evidence	Breach Remedy
	Dedicated escrow per instrument/region	·	Immediate suspension; corrective plan
Dual Authorization	,	Authorization matrix; system logs	Control reset; post-event audit
Covenant Testing	Quarterly DSCR, leverage, and reserve tests	Covenant certificates; auditor review	Coupon suspension; restructuring
	Senior-first servicing; step-ups only after verification	Waterfall schedules; servicing reports	Reallocation; impact carry holdback

# B.3.2 KYC/AML, Sanctions, and Beneficial Ownership

Control	Requirement	Evidence	Breach Remedy
IIKYC/AMI	·		Onboarding denial; contract termination
	~	• •	Freeze/exit; regulatory notification
			Withhold disbursement; legal referral

# **B.3.3 Procurement Integrity**

Control	Requirement	Evidence	Breach Remedy
Predualification		,,	Vendor disbarment; retender
	Transparent and auditable competition	Bid logs; evaluation records	Re-procurement order
			Sanctions; process restart



Control	Requirement	Evidence	Breach Remedy
IL-Procurement	Digital trail, access control, and time-stamping	, ,	System remediation; forensic audit

# **B.3.4 ESG Safeguards and Grievance Redress**

Control	Requirement	Evidence	Breach Remedy
ILSIMP Adoption		' '	Corrective action; suspension
	Compliance with labor rights; GBV mitigation	_	Immediate remediation; vendor ban
•	Independent intake; response SLAs; appeals		Escalation to GSIA; sanctions

# **B.3.5 Data Governance and Cybersecurity**

Control	Requirement	Evidence	Breach Remedy
Data Quality Assessments	' '		Data rectification; re-verification
Access & Privacy	·	<b>.</b> ,	Access revocation; incident report
Uptime & SLA Enforcement	<u> </u>	Uptime dashboards; SLA attestations	Service credits; vendor penalties
Incident Response			Containment orders; external review

# **B.4 Risk Identification, Measurement, and Stress Testing**

AfSE 2074 requires ex-ante and periodic measurement of risk using conservative assumptions, sensitivity analyses, and adverse scenarios.

Process	Cadence	Scope	Output
Sensitivity Analysis	_	Revenue, costs, FX, rates, delays	Tornado charts; risk notes
Scenario Testing	Quarterly; annual severe case		Scenario pack; mitigation triggers
Liquidity Runway	IIVIONTNIV		Runway report; drawdown plan



Process	Cadence	Scope	Output
Impact Delivery Stress	Quarterly	IIKPI slippage: MEL variance i	Adaptive management memo; tranche gating

### **B.5 Contingency Planning and Business Continuity**

Each programme must maintain a Business Continuity Plan (BCP) and Disaster Recovery (DR) capability aligned to risk criticality.

Plan Element	Minimum Standard	Test Frequency	Evidence
BCP Ownership	Named accountable owner; escalation tree	Annual live test	Test report; sign-offs
DR Recovery Targets	RTO/RPO defined for critical systems	Semi-annual	DR drill results
Alternate Vendors/Sites	Pre-approved alternates for critical services	Annual refresh	Contracts; contact lists
Communications	Stakeholder and regulator notification scripts		Script logs; media plan

# **B.6 Monitoring, Evaluation, and Learning (MEL) Controls**

Impact integrity is a fiduciary obligation under AfSE 2074.

Control	Requirement	Gate/Trigger	Remedy
Baseline Approval	•		Tranche hold; independent review
KPI Variance Windows	Pre-agreed variance bands by indicator	Quarterly review	Corrective plan; technical assistance
SROI Certification	Annual true-up of outcomes	lyear-end	Step-up activation or holdback
Public Disclosure	Open dashboards; annual impact report	()uarterly/Annual	Publication order; reputational sanction

### **B.7 Oversight, Audit, and Certification**

Independent assurance is mandatory and recurring.

Assurance Layer	Operator	Cadence	Scope	Deliverable
Internal Control Attestation	Treasury & Compliance Unit	IMonthly	,	Control attestation



Assurance Layer	Operator	Cadence	Scope	Deliverable
External Financial Audit		•	covenant tests	Audit report; management letter
ESG/Safeguards Audit	Compliance + Specialist	isemi-anniiai	•	Safeguards statement
MEL Verification	MEL Council + GSIA	• •		Impact verification
Certification of Adherence	GSIA	lAnnual	Whole-of-framework compliance	Certificate; conditions (if any)

# **B.8 Incident Management, Remediation, and Sanctions**

Events, breaches, or material variances trigger formal remedies and transparent reporting.

Event Type	Materiality Threshold	Immediate Action	Structured Remedy	Potential Sanctions
Financial Covenant Breach	DSCR below covenant; reserve shortfall	Tranche halt; notify investors	Restructuring plan; liquidity buffer restoration	Coupon suspension; downgrade of step-ups
ESG/Community Harm	Verified ESMP breach; unresolved grievance	Stop-work order; safeguards review	third-party	Vendor ban; contract termination
Integrity/Procurement Misconduct	Conflict, bid rigging, fraud	Forensic audit; freeze payment	Re-procurement; restitution	Disbarment; legal referral
Impact Under-Delivery	KPI shortfalls beyond band	Adaptive management; TA deployment	'	Performance carry holdback; step-down
Data/Cyber Breach	Unauthorized access; service outage	Containment; regulator notice	<u>~</u> .	Access revocation; penalties

# **B.9 Legal Structuring, Dispute Resolution, and Stabilization**

Contracts must codify protections for both investor rights and social outcomes.



Clause	Purpose	Minimum Content	Venue/Law
Stabilization	Guard against adverse policy/regulatory shifts	Non-discrimination; grandfathering; tariff adjustment	Host law + international arbitration fallback
Arbitration	Neutral, enforceable dispute resolution	Institutional rules (ICC/UNCITRAL); timelines	Neutral seat; governing law specified
Stepwise Cure	Structured remediation before termination	Notice; cure periods; corrective plan oversight	Contractual; Compliance supervision
Transparency & Disclosure	Enforce public reporting	Publication orders; audit rights; deadlines	AfSE Treasury authority with sanctions
Integrity Covenants	Prevent and remedy misconduct	Anti-corruption; conflicts; cooperation in audits	Immediate sanction triggers

### **B.10** Reporting, Disclosure, and Market Signaling

Transparency is a non-waivable covenant. All financed entities must comply with standardized reporting calendars and public disclosures.

Report	Audience	Cadence	Content	Publication
Quarterly Performance Report	Investors; AfSE bodies	Quarterly		Investor portal; selected public KPIs
Annual Impact Report	Public; regulators; investors	Annual		Public website; downloadable dataset
Safeguards Statement	Communities; regulators	Semi-anniial	ESMP status; grievances; remedies	Public dashboard
Certification & Ratings Note	Institutional investors		GSIA certificate; (optional) impact rating	Investor relations pack

# **B.11** Roles, Responsibilities, and Competency

Competency and independence are prerequisites for all actors.



Actor	Obligations	Competency Standard	Independence Safeguard
Programme Owner	Deliver outcomes; maintain controls; accurate reporting	•	Separation from treasury and audit functions
AfSE Treasury	Custody; tranching; waterfall enforcement	llhedging: covenant	Dual authorization; rotating signatories
Compliance & Safeguards Unit	Integrity and ESG enforcement; sanctions	listandards:	Veto rights; direct reporting to Board
MEL Council	Indicator setting; verification; SROI	Evaluation science; data governance	Publication rights; GSIA interface
External Auditor	Financial assurance		Engagement rotation; independence attestations
GSIA Oversight	Certification; oversight veto	Development finance; ESG; impact verification	Charter-mandated independence

# **B.12 Documentation and Record Retention**

All records must be complete, tamper-evident, and retrievable for independent review.

Record Class	Retention	Format	Access
	10 years post-closure	Digitally signed; immutable logs	Treasury; Auditor; GSIA
	10 years post-closure	E-procurement system archives	Compliance; Auditor
IIMEL & Impact	•		MEL Council; GSIA; public extracts
IIFSG & Grievance	10 years post-closure	Case files: resolutions: audits	Compliance; Communities (redacted)

# **B.13 Continuous Improvement and Policy Review**

The framework is adaptive and subject to periodic enhancement.

Mechanism	Cadence	Owner	Output
Lessons-Learned Peer Review	Annual	Agenda /4 Agencv	Compendium; playbook updates



Mechanism	Cadence	Owner	Output
Policy Refresh Cycle	Biennial, or upon material event	IATSE Board	Revised directives; implementation circulars
Training & Accreditation	Annual: role-specific	_	Certifications; remediation plans

# Annex C: Charity as a Business (CaaB) Operational Model

This Annex constitutes the binding operational, fiduciary, and governance standard for the Charity as a Business (CaaB) construct under Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (AfSE 2074). It converts philanthropic intent and corporate social responsibility into contractual, auditable, and economically rational social delivery, embedding local legitimacy and measurable outcomes. All provisions herein are enforceable and shall be read in harmony with Chapter 4 (Fiduciary Architecture), Chapter 5 (Social Impact Integration), and Annex B (Risk and Compliance Framework).

#### **C.1** Purpose and Charter

CaaB is designed to institutionalize membership-driven social capital markets that fund local and regional portfolios aligned with the Social Global Goals (SGGs). Contributions are transformed into instrument subscriptions or revolving notes governed by ring-fenced escrows and impact covenants. Social outcomes—termed Impact Dividends—are recognized only upon MEL-verified delivery and publicly disclosed to preserve confidence, crowd-in capital, and sustain participation.

#### **C.2 Operating Structure and Layered Governance**

CaaB operates across three governance layers—Local Market Area, Regional (Country/REC), and Global—each with defined mandates, custodial controls, and decision rights. Subsidiarity is preserved through local voting, while central fiduciary integrity is assured by escrow segregation and oversight.

Layer	Mandate	Capital Source	Escrow & Ring-Fence	Decision Rights	Compliance Interface
Area	Prioritize and execute community portfolios	Membership pools; local CSR	Local escrow;	voting; programme owner	MEL Operator; Procurement Auditor
	Aggregate pipelines; standardize documentation	co-finance:	Regional escrow with instrument ring-fence	Investment Committee	Compliance & Safeguards Unit
, , ,	Standard setting; cross-border optimization	Impact funds; mezzanine; first-loss capital	cross-instrument	AfSE Board; GSIA certification	GSIA Oversight; Agenda 74 Agency

**C.3 Membership Classes and Contribution Mechanics** 



Membership classes are structured to accommodate varied capacities and mandates while preserving uniform safeguards. Contributions may be recurring or episodic, and are converted into instrument subscriptions under AfSE 2074.

Member Class	Typical Contributors	Contribution Form	Instrument Form	Rights & Obligations
Corporate Members	Large corporates; utilities; telecoms	CSR line items; dedicated allocations	Impact fund shares; revenue-backed notes	Governance participation; disclosure; ESG compliance
SME Members	Local enterprises; cooperatives	Monthly/quarterly memberships	Revolving CaaB notes (local ring-fence)	Local voting; procurement integrity; MEL reporting
Citizen Members	Individuals; households	Micro-payments; vouchers	Community vouchers; micro-notes	Access to services; grievance participation
Foundations/Philanthropy		Matching grants; first-loss capital	Junior protection; guarantees	Catalytic crowd-in; leverage signaling
Institutional Partners	Universities; hospitals; NGOs	In-kind and capital	Mixed instruments per portfolio	Governance seats as applicable; compliance parity

### **C.4 Financial Mechanics and Waterfall Discipline**

CaaB capital is custody-controlled, ring-fenced, and recycled per local bylaws and AfSE waterfall rules. Senior servicing is prioritized; impact-linked features activate only upon **MEL verification**.

Step	Action	Custody & Control	Documentation	Outcome
Capital	Membership intake; CSR conversion; first-loss commitments	Local/Regional escrow segregation	agreements;	Portfolio funding capacity established
IIAllocation		II)ual authorization	linstrument term	Tranche readiness



Step	Action	Custody & Control	Documentation	Outcome
III)ishursement	lmilestones	Escrow to project accounts; ring-fence	Disbursement notice; milestone certificates	Programme start
Servicing	Senior servicing; impact-linked step-ups		, ,	Return recognition
Recycling	·	, -	, ,	Continuity of social delivery

### **C.5 Portfolio Formation and Local Voting**

Local portfolios are established by vote under bylaws that ensure fairness, inclusion, and transparency. Projects must satisfy eligibility, safeguards, and MEL readiness and be contracted under AfSE standards.

Portfolio Category	Examples	Eligibility Requirements	Primary Safeguards
Education & TVET	Skills centers; apprenticeship programmes	SGG mapping; KPI library; baseline plan	Child protection; labor standards
Health Services	Primary clinics; mobile health; supply chains	ESMP draft; uptime SLAs; procurement plan	Community grievance; GBV mitigation
Digital & Governance	Fibre access; e-gov kiosks; service SLAs	NOC logs; security protocols; vendor integrity	Data privacy; uptime and incident response
Food & Rural Livelihoods	Post-harvest; local markets; cooperatives	Climate resilience indices; coop bylaws	Environmental safeguards; inclusion audits
Water & Sanitation	Household connections; leak reduction	Social tariff covenants; service affordability	ESMP; community consultation records

### **C.6 Service Delivery and Impact Dividends**

CaaB defines Impact Dividends as verified outcomes delivered per unit of capital. Dividends are non-financial returns recognized through MEL certification and disclosed publicly.

Mechanism	Output	Impact Dividend	Verification
Revolving CaaB	Continuous	Beneficiaries reached;	MEL dashboards;
Notes	micro-projects	service-hours; access parity	quarterly attestations



Mechanism	Output	Impact Dividend	Verification
			Term sheet KPIs; GSIA certification
Vouchers & Co-Pay	_		Inclusion audits; grievance logs

### **C.7 MEL Standards and Public Reporting**

MEL is mandatory and conditions both disbursement and recognition of impact-linked returns. Indicators shall be SMART, disaggregated, and certified.

Element	Requirement	Frequency	Certification	Disclosure
	Completed and approved before first tranche	One-off (pre-launch)	MEL Council	Baseline summary (public abstract)
KPI Tracking	SGG-aligned indicators	Quarterly		Public dashboards; quarterly snapshots
	Annual reconciliation of outcomes	Annual	MEL Council	Annual impact report
	Accuracy, completeness, timeliness	Quarterly DQA	MEL Operator	DQA notes (summary)

#### C.8 Integrity, ESG, and Grievance Protections

CaaB portfolios observe identical safeguards to AfSE finance. Grievances are independently handled with strict service-level agreements.

Safeguard	Operationalization	Evidence	Remedy on Breach
Procurement Integrity	·	, ,	Re-procurement; vendor sanction
ESG Compliance	ESMP adoption; labor standards; GBV mitigation		Corrective action; suspension
Community Grievance	Independent intake; response SLAs; escalation	Case registry; resolution certificates	Escalation to GSIA; sanctions

### **C.9 Instrument Integration and Term Sheet Features**

CaaB contributions convert into standardized instruments. Impact covenants and waterfall rules are enforceable.



Instrument	Use Case	Impact Feature	Term Sheet Controls
Revolving CaaB Notes	Local micro-projects		Ring-fence; recycling rules; MEL preconditions
Impact Fund Shares	Regional portfolios	contingent on impact	KPI schedule; certification gates; ESG annex
Revenue-Backed	Service delivery with	Variable coupon indexed	DSCR covenants; service
Notes	cash flows	to SLAs	KPIs; stabilization clauses
First-Loss/Guarantees	Catalytic de-risking		Subordination; trigger definitions

# **C.10** Recognition and Incentive System

Recognition instruments create non-financial returns that reinforce participation without compromising fiduciary rigor.

Recognition Instrument	Eligibility	Award Basis	Effect	Governance
• • •	Corporate/SME compliance			GSIA-issued; annual renewal
Impact Scorecard	All portfolios		•	MEL Council oversight
Community Laurels	Local actors	Consistent delivery	Hrust: volunteerism	Local Board; audited
Equity of Participation	Citizen members			AfSE rules; audit trail

## **C.11 Community Protection and Access Protocol**

Access to services funded by CaaB must be equitable and safeguarded. Protocols mandate inclusion, affordability, and grievance redress.

Protection	Requirement	Verification
llinclusion		MEL disaggregation; inclusion audits
Affordability	Social tariffs and voucher schemes	Tariff index; voucher registry



Protection	Requirement	Verification
Redress	Transparent grievance and appeal	Case registry; resolution certificates

# **C.12 Risk Controls and Contingency (CaaB Focus)**

CaaB portfolios adopt the risk taxonomy and controls from Annex B, with emphasis on locality and continuity.

Risk Class	Control	Local Application	Escalation Path
Liquidity	Minimum local reserves	Local buffer covenant	Treasury → Investment Committee
Integrity	Vendor prequalification; forensic readiness	E-procurement; local audits	Compliance Unit → GSIA
Impact Delivery	Hranche gating by KPI	Adaptive management; TA deployment	MEL Council
Data & Cyber	Access controls; SLA enforcement	Local NOC logs; incident response	Compliance Unit
Reputational	Public dashboards; publication orders	Quarterly local disclosures	Treasury; GSIA certification impact

# **C.13 Onboarding and Accreditation**

Members and portfolios are onboarded under standardized protocols to reduce friction and protect integrity.

Stage		Portfolio Requirements	Gatekeeper	Outcome
Registration	Identity; ethics policy; commitment declaration	Concept note; SGG mapping	Local Board	Registry entry
llEligibility	·	ESG pre-screen; MEL outline	Compliance Unit	Eligibility status
Accreditation		procurement plan	Agenda 74 Agency (training); MEL Council	Accredited member/portfolio
Launch	Subscription execution	Term sheet; escrow setup	Treasury	Activation



Stage	Member Requirements	Portfolio Requirements	Gatekeeper	Outcome
Monitoring	Quarterly reporting	•		Ongoing performance
Renewal	Annual review	Lessons learned; improvements	GSIA	Certification renewal

#### **C.14 Scaling and Replication Protocol**

CaaB replication follows model bylaws and sector playbooks to ensure fidelity and speed.

Element	Scaling Standard	Evidence	
IIModel Bylaws	Uniform voting, grievance, ring-fence rules	Adopted bylaws; audit trail	
Sector Playbooks	IKPI libraries: instrument stacks	Playbook adoption; indicator schedule	
Training & Capacity	Accredited local operators	Certificates; training logs	
Cross-Portfolio Learning	Annual peer review	Lessons-learned compendium	

#### **C.15 Legal Provisions and Amendments**

CaaB portfolios and bylaws are subject to AfSE 2074 hierarchy and dispute resolution standards.

Provision	Rule	Venue/Law
IPrecedence	AfSE Charter and Policy Directives prevail over local bylaws	As per AfSE dispute hierarchy
Amendments		Recorded resolution; public notice
Arbitration	Neutral venue: institutional rules	ICC/UNCITRAL; specified governing law
Transparency	•	Publication orders and sanctions per Annex B

**Operational Directive.** All CaaB portfolios, instruments, and member arrangements shall append this Annex by reference and comply with the controls, disclosures, and certification requirements herein. Deviations require prior written approval of the AfSE Board, on recommendation of the Compliance & Safeguards Unit, with concurrence of GSIA.